### THE REV. OLIVER ARNOLD, FIRST RECTOR OF SUSSEX, N.B., WITH SOME ACCOUNT OF HIS LIFE, HIS PARISH AND HIS SUCCESSORS AND THE OLD INDIAN COLLEGE

Published @ 2017 Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd

ISBN 9780649293513

The Rev. Oliver Arnold, First Rector of Sussex, N.B., with Some Account of his life, his parish and his successors and the old Indian College by Leonard Allison

Except for use in any review, the reproduction or utilisation of this work in whole or in part in any form by any electronic, mechanical or other means, now known or hereafter invented, including xerography, photocopying and recording, or in any information storage or retrieval system, is forbidden without the permission of the publisher, Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd, PO Box 1576 Collingwood, Victoria 3066 Australia.

All rights reserved.

Edited by Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd. Cover @ 2017

This book is sold subject to the condition that it shall not, by way of trade or otherwise, be lent, re-sold, hired out, or otherwise circulated without the publisher's prior consent in any form or binding or cover other than that in which it is published and without a similar condition including this condition being imposed on the subsequent purchaser.

www.triestepublishing.com

## LEONARD ALLISON

### THE REV. OLIVER ARNOLD, FIRST RECTOR OF SUSSEX, N.B., WITH SOME ACCOUNT OF HIS LIFE, HIS PARISH AND HIS SUCCESSORS AND THE OLD INDIAN COLLEGE

Trieste

# THE REV. OLIVER ARNOLD,

55 02

0

.

(5) 0.0000

-----

FIRST RECTOR OF SUSSEX, N. B.,

WITE

### Some Account of His Life,

His Parish, and His Successors,

AND THE

### OLD INDIAN COLLEGE.

BY LEONARD ALLISON, B. A., BARBISTEE, &c., SUSSEX, N. B.

WITH ILLUSTRATIONS FROM PHOTOGRAPHS BY THE AUTHOR.

"Entered according to Act of the Perliamant of Canada, in the year 1892, by Leonard Allison, B. A., at the Department of Agriculture."

84INT JOHN, N. B. : THE SUN PRINTING CO., (LTD.) CANTERBURY STREET. 1892.

Can 5661.5

2

MANIAN COLLEGA may 23, 1422 4 Hipt of clarance m. Warner.



REY. OLIVER ARNOLD.

÷

#### REV. OLIVER ARNOLD, The First Rector of The Parish of Sussex, with Some Account of His Life, His Successors, &c.

#### BY LEONARD ALLISON, B. A., SUSSEX, N. B.

No excuse need in these days be offered for the study of bistory. In all sges of the world and in all departments of burnan activity some knowledge of the past has proved requisite to a source of apprehension and full erjoyment of the present, as well as to a sugaolous forecast of and a wise provision for the future; and rone of the sisters nine has new more votaries than Clic. Not only are the great herces who lived before Agamenton for ever last to us because they lacked a sacred bard to sing their story, but the genins of the historian bus frequently won nore lasting renown than the greatest exploits of these he cell brated. Homer, who sang of herces, Thueydides the philosophical, Livy with his "pictured page," Tacitus with bis terze and thrilling tales, Gibbon the great, and Macaulay the many-sided bave thus secored fame that shall perish only with the languages in which they wrote.

\_\_\_\_\_

The bias of the great, and historical is the shall perish only with the languages in which they wrote. The biastorical ploture, however, like any other, requires both proportion and perspective, and background as well as forceground. In some degree the importance of an event varies directly with the length of time since it occurred. The heppenings of yesterday are no less biatory than those of a hundred years ago; but we cannot always get up high enough above the busche and routime of every day life to estimate aright the wholly transient from the comparatively oternal. The fellow fooling on the fence sees straighter sometimes than the farmor following the furrow. Thus is it that the greatest writter have rarely been the first delvers in their particular field. Generalization and analysis and philosophical deduction imply facts and premises, to gather and arrange which is the humbler office of the off-for gotten tooler.

But though the time has not yet come for

writing a history of Sustex, or perhaps of this Province; while it is not proposed to trace, much less philosophize upin, the causes of the American revolution, or to assign the exact proportions in which a five chortsighted old men in Englend and a few hotheaded young men in America were respectively responsible for that event of far-reaching and daily inoreasing importance; it is conceived to be time, and high time, to collect some materals from which the history of this locality may hereafter be constructed; to gather from provincial archives and county records, from family Bibles and time-stained jumsla, and by the Biful and uncertain light of local tradition, who and what manner of men they were that, having resisted, often unto blood, striving spainst what they considered sin, abandoned both friends and property to be out for themselves a home in a howling and desolate wilderness. Many consists and scanty. But a small proportion of them had what we would call an education; they had just perted in anger from tradition on the mere bilds paths, and ravelling on them wholly by homeback; there were no newspapers or book stores of any account, and no mails, realized, steamers, tele graphs or telephones at all. Is it not well that men should cocasionally turn from the farm, the factory, the forum, to survey the sacrifices, the sufferings and the successes of these stalwart, spirited and self-respecting grandstres?

When the Revolutionary war began in 1776, the whole of what is now the province of New Brunzwick was included in the province of Nova Scotia. The inhabitants of English descent in all this territory

probably did not then number more than 1500, and were chiefly settled around St. John, Maugerville and Sackville. There were also some sonttered Acadian refugres along the north shore and around the head waters of the St. John river; besides which were the Indiane, whose number cannot be accurate-Inclusion, whose number cannot be accurate-ly stated and who probably had no settle-ments at which they sojourned for more than a few months at a time. There was, however, a large indian village of some description and of more or less permanent chalacter on the land now owned by J. Alfred Campbell, at the junotion of the Millstream with the Kennebcooasis; and from the nature of that locality, as well as the large burying ground known to have existed there, and the remains of Indian arrow-heads and other implements found there, it can bardly be doubted that the Indiane, frequently resorted thither. When the Loyalists isoded at St. John in 1783 the only people of European descent settled in territory new included in Kings county were a few on the Hammond River at the place still called from them French Village, Captain Munro says there were fifteen families of these Acadiana, and that they had then been there shout fifteen years. Several of them took out grants in 1787, from which their names seem to have been principally Blanchard, Robichau, Terio, Terisand Thibaudeau. This would, according to Mr. Hannay, indicate that they were dedred years before settled around Port Boyal; but just how and when they reached their home on the Hammond River is not very clear. They may have taken refuge there from the Petitoodiac or the St. John, or quite possibly they had sought safety in this seeladed nestulement when furthvely return-ing after the great expansion. They all ing after the great expalsion. They all sold out, however, soon after obtaining their grants. Perhaps they did not feel at home with their new neighbors; at all events, they seem to have preferred to join their kindred in Miramichi or Madawaska. Among those who purchased from them was John Pogs-ley, the great-grandfather of the Hon. William Pagelev, DOL., the present solicitor-general of New Branswick.

Much of the highlands had been lately overrun by fires. The early reports of the orown land surveyors frequently mention low round Sussex and the Millstream as "burnt land," or as covered with a young growth of wood not yet fib for timber or firewood; and blackened stamps of bugs place and other monarchs of the forest have been found when tracing lines even in comparatively recent times. It has been suggested that the Indians had purposely set such fires to deter the loyalists from settling; but though the Indiana have a tradition that a great fire occurred not long before the white man come, the accounts of its origin and date are so vague and in-definite that it seems fairer to conclude that the fire occurred accidentally or through an attempt by the natives to clear their hunting grounds after the great gale of Novem-ber 3rd, 1769. Fortunately gume was abondank, and for many years the settlers added largely to their larders from more and partridge, salmon and trout. The stories told of the plentifulness of game in those days would be the despair of sports-mess of the present time. It was a quite ordinary matter then to shoot two or three Books of a morning at the salt springs in Penolequis, and the Kennebeccasis was at times so choked up with salmon that ope might almost cross upon their backs at the rapids and rocky shoals above Norton. The very names of Salmon river and Trout creck are memorials to this day of the chief characteristics of these streams in early times, and the sport had upon them by men yet living is ample proof that but for dele-terious sawdust and murderous saw legs Sumer would not now be dependent for its reputation as a fishing resort upon Dick's laks and Squirrel Cots,

But though there were then probably no inhabitants settled along its banks, the Kennebeccasis, connecting, as it does, with the Patitodiac by a short portage of only about a mile and a half, had, no doubt, long formed one of the chief highways across the province, Indeed, the very name "Anagance" is said to signify a portage or carrying place. Early reports speak of both the Indians and the French having repeatedly followed this route between the St. John river and the villages at the bead of the Bay of Fundy. The portage from the North river to the Canasa river was probably used in going to the upper St. John; but there is little doubt that the route through Suescr was ordinarily preferred to the bold shores and turbulent tides of the bay. For more than 40 years after the settlement of Susser the Kennebecoasis continued the chief means of transport for heavy freight both to and from the sea. It was in this connection that the famous "Durham boats" were mostly They were about 30 or 40 feet in need. length, and about 8 fest in width; not decked over, except for a small space at the stern; provided with a keel, though flatter in the bottom than ordinary orais, and furnished with oars, and also with a mast, which supported skall, where the wind or ourrent would propel the bost, bat which, in the upper and shallower waters, upheld above the bashes on the bank a stout tow-rops, whereby the orew of four or five dragged the boat to its destination.

Before 1783 the governor of Nova Sootia had issued a few grants of land now inoladed in Kings counchy. Of these the serilest of importance was the so-called township of Amesbury, which took its name from the ohlef grantee, James Amesbury, a merchant of Halifax. It extended from the lower side line of the "Studholm-Barker" grant weetsward and northward to the St. John and Washademoak. Sir Andrew Snape Hammond, lieutesant governor of Nova Sootia in 1781 and 1782, obtained Dec. 23rd, 1782, the grant of a trace of land situate on the Kiver St. John and bounded as

Baginning on the southern bundary line of the township granted to James Amerony and others, and on the eastern give of the fiver Kanapbeccasis opposite the portage, thouse running east 330 chains on sait southern boundary line, theace south 330 chains, thouse west 330 chains, or till it comes to the silver Kennebeceasis, and thence up stream to the first buunds.

This was a block of about 10,000 acres, described by Caprain Munro as being chiefly indifferent land covered with birch, but comprising some good intervale and apland, which included the Franch village above raferred to. He also described the towaship of Amesbury as consisting of low sunkan intervale and large meadows in the southern portion. The upper part was chiefly burnt isnd, but about Balleisle the land was tolerably good, though without timber.

Thegrant kas was as the "Studholm-Barter grant" was dated the 15th day of August, 1782. It was made to Gilfred Studholme, Simon Barter, William Barter, Benjamin Barter, Dankin Campbell, Benjamin Saow and John Hassen; and comprised 9,500 acres (with the studi allowance), extending from Norton Station to Passakeag. This and the Studville grant to Majer Stadholme (dated June 10th, 1784.) were the only Nova Scotia grants of land in Kings county that were not afterwards esohested. No settlement seems to have been mide by either Amesbury or Sir Aadrew. They probably obtained their grants in the first place for speculative purposes only; and, as they failed to comply with the conditions on which the grants were issued, the land was escheated to the grown and re-granted to home fide settlers. Amesbury is traced now only by a few references in early documents; but has parish of Hammond, and that beautiful stream, the Hammond river, perpetuate the memory of the speculative governor of Nova Scotta.

The first grant of land comprised in the present parish of Sussex was to Gilfred Studbolme, Thomas Harper, James Hayes, John Barges and William McLeod. It was Some birger and we man an about to was dated the 10th day of June, 1784, and com-prised about 5,000 acres in a block making three miles square, and ex-bending from below Apohagul Station to the farm of Minhael Oreighton as Lower Cove. A deed to Major Studholms by the other grantees shows that the names of the laster were incerted solely for and on the behalf of the said Gilfred Studholme, with intent that they should convey to him when-over required. The Major evidently was not then strictly entitled to so large a tract. By grant dated the 6th day of July, 1784, a block of 14,000 acres, also known as Capt. Hauser's fourth survey, was granted by the Nova Scotia government to Colonel Isaac Allen and others. This extended from Sudville nearly to the salt works on the Salmon river and to the Paries brook on the Trout Oceak, and so included the whole of the village of Sussex. Unload Alisa, however, as well as many of his associates, pro-ferred to settle above Fredericton on the St. John river, and so relisquished this grant in Sussex. This was one of the last of the grants made by the Nova Scotla government of land in this vicinity, for on the 16th of August, 1784, New Bruaswick was erected into a separate province.

By grant disted the 19th day of May, 1785, the "Island," comprising the farms of William Oreighton, Shariff Freess, Col. Beer and the late William Morrison, was granted to the Hon. George Leonard; and suberquently, by grant dased the 18th day of Jus; 1794, three lots to the eastward of the "Leand" and six lots to the northward of Salmon River were granted to Mr. Luonard and John and Peter Cougle; and tots 48 and 50, south of the Trous Orsek, were also given to Mr. Leonard. Lut 50 is that on which the present restory stands; and lot 48 is bounded eastwardly by the farm of Nelson Arnold, Heq., and weetwardly by the Ward's Creek road, and includes to the northward of the Peter road the lands of William Moleod and John

The remainder of the land originally

38

assigned to Col. Allen and his associates was included in another grant of the same date, July 18th, 1794, which is knows at the grant to John Ross and others. Most of the early grants were of large tracts of land, and took their names from the grantee who happened to be first mentioned therein, Thus the grant of the land at Panob-squis, which is jated the 23rd day of Jane, 1766, and includes all the ter-ritory from Pinnwescep to the old graval pit above "the lane" is known as the grant to John Farnie and others. Almost nothing is known of either Ross or furnie, and probably neither would now be remembered at all but for the accident which pisced their names first in their respective grants. On such a slender thread hangs human fame. On such a slender thread hangs human fama, By these grants, or by purchase shortly afterward, became settled in Sussex the Barbertes, Cougles, Doyals, Fairweathers, Hallette, Heines, Leonards, McLeans, Mo-Leods, Parlees, Roaches, Shects, Sniders, Stocktons, Valls, and others whose names remain unto this day. They had nearly all sarved the crown in the shorts of Messa-chusetts. New York, New Jersey and Panochusetts, New York, New Jersey and Pendsylvania.

Oliver Arnold was one of those who came to Sussex as a purchaser, and not as an orig, inal grantee. He was born at Mansfield, in the state of Connecticut, on Wednesday the lath day of October, 1755; the eldest ohild of Nathan Arnold and his wife Pru-dence, who was the daughter of Nathan Denison of the neighboring town of Windham. Nathan Arnold was a native of Manufield and a reputable physician of that place; but his accestry is not known with certainty. Ho is thought to have been a grandson of John Arnold, who was one of the first settlers of Mansfield and a proprietor and large land owner of that town. The latter is supposed to have been descended in the 5th or 6th degree from William Arnold, who was born on the 24 h day of Jane, 1587, at Cheselbourne, in the county of Dorset, Eagland, settled at Providence, R. I., in 1636, and died at Warwick, R. I., in 1676 or 1677. His family had for several generations been living in England, and numbered among their ancestors divers and sundry Welsh knights, as well as Cadwalla-der, the last king of the Britons. Oliver was a name of frequent resurrance among the posterity of William Arcold; which fact, together with the failure of diligent inquiry to elicit any mention of more than the one Arnold family in New

Eagland, seems to make it reasonably cortain that the subject of this sketch was a lineal descendant of William Arnold, above mentioned.

Dr. Nathan Arnold and his lady had the following family, viz:

Oliver, horn the 15th day of October, 1755. Mary, born the 15th day of October, 1757. Amos, born the 16th day of October, 1759. Donison, born the 16th day of September, 1761 died the 5th day of November, 1761. Labreita, born the 16th day of November, 1762. 1784

Nathan, born the 2nd day of March, 1785. Roewell, born the 19th day of February, 1767. Pradence, born the 18th day of November.

1768. Fidelia, barn the 27th day of November, 1770.

Of these at least Amor and Roswell came to New Branswick with Oliver, but whether they died here while young men or returned. to Connectiont, le not new known. No positive information has been gathered re-specting any other of Mr. Arnold's brothers and sisters.

Oliver Arnold graduated at Yale college, R. New Haven, Conn., in 1776; but nothing R. further oan be learned of him from the rec ords of that institution, and no more is known of him until after his arrival at Sa. John with the other Loyalists in 1783. He Gest appears as societary to the Rev. John Sayre, George Leonard, William Tyog, James Poters and Gilfred Studholms, who had bhe supervision of the new city. Their had the supervision of the new city. designation was "The Directors of the Town at the Ratrance of the River Saint John. The original plan of the city was made by Paul Bedell, as deputy surveyor, under the superintendence of Major Studholme, and bears date the 17th day of December, 1783, and during that winter the lots were distributed. A dozin or more of the certifi-cates signed by Oliver Arnold as secretary are registered in the St. John Record Office as the first link in the paper title to the several lots. These certificates or tickets were in the following form, viz :

This may certify that Dorotha Kingston is the rightful owner of Lot No. 844 in Duke street, being forty feet by one hundred, hav-ing compiled with the terms of receiving it. By order of the Director of the Town as the Emistance of the River Saint John.

OLIVER ARNOLD.

This Dorotha (Dorothy?) Kingston was one of the original grantees of lot 47 in Sussex, extending from the Ward's Greek road westwards along the Postroad, as far as Henry Golding's blacksmith shop, and from the late Ieaac Bunnell's northwardly to the Trout Creek,